Public Document Pack

TONBRIDGE & MALLING
BOROUGH COUNCIL

Gibson Building
Chief Executive Gibson Drive
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA Kings Hill, West Malling
Kent ME19 4L.Z
West Malling (01732) 844522

NB - This agenda contains proposals, Contact: Committee Services
recommendations and options. These do (01732) 876025
not_represent Counc.:il policy or decisions 3 February 2014
until they have received proper

consideration through the full decision

making process.

To: MEMBERS OF THE JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE
(Copies to all Members of the Council)

Dear Sir/Madam

Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Joint Standards Committee to be held in
the Civic Suite, Gibson Building, Kings Hill on Tuesday, 11th February, 2014 commencing
at 7.30 pm

Yours faithfully
JULIE BEILBY

Chief Executive

AGENDA

PART 1 - PUBLIC

1. Apologies for absence
2. Declarations of Interest

Matters for Recommendation to the Council

3. Arrangements for Dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints 5-40



Matters submitted for Information

Openness and Transparency on Personal Interests - A Guide 41 -60
for Councillors

Standards in Public Life 61-72
Urgent Items

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.

Matters for consideration in Private

Exclusion of Press and Public

The Chairman to move that the press and public be excluded from the remainder
of the meeting during consideration of any items the publication of which would
disclose exempt information.

PART 2 - PRIVATE

Urgent Items

Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent due to special
circumstances and of which notice has been given to the Chief Executive.



MEMBERSHIP

Clir Miss J L Sergison (Chairman)
Clir D A S Davis (Vice-Chairman)

Clir M A C Balfour

Clir Mrs P Bates

Clir Mrs J M Bellamy
Clir P F Bolt

Clir Ms V M C Branson
Clir T Edmondston-Low
Clir B J Luker

Clir Mrs S Murray

Clir M Parry-Waller
Clir Mrs E A Simpson
Clir C P Smith

D S Ashton
J M Gledhill

Town/Parish Representatives:

D J Beach

J A Beadle
M Carboni

D Elvy

A P J Keeley
A Newby

S Perry

J P S Regan
W E Stead
KJ Terry

D Thornewell
R Ulph

D Waller

A T West



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11 FEBRUARY 2014

Report of the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

Part 1- Public

For recommendation to Council

1 ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1 Section 28(6) of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Borough Council to adopt
arrangements for dealing with complaints of breaches of the Code of Conduct
both by Borough Council members and by Parish/ Town Council members. Any
such complaints can only be dealt with in accordance with the adopted
arrangements.

1.1.2 On 10 July 2012 the Borough Council adopted the appropriate arrangements for
Tonbridge and Malling.

1.1.3 The adopted arrangements now need to be reviewed to ensure they reflect the
agreed structure of the Joint Standards Committee and its Hearing Panels.

1.2 Proposed amendments

1.2.1 The revised arrangements are attached at Annex 1. Members are asked to note
that the arrangements have been amended in 2 respects —

(a) References to the Standards and Training Committee have been replaced
with the Joint Standards Committee;

(b) Paragraph 1.1 of the Hearing Panel Procedure has been revised to reflect
the agreed composition of the Hearing Panel

1.2.2 No further changes to the arrangements are proposed at this time. Members are
also asked to note that any revisions to the Code of Conduct (attached as Annex
1 to the arrangements) now fall to be considered by the General Purposes
Committee, but the current version of the Code is included for completeness.

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public @g€ O 11 February 2014



1.3 Legal Implications

1.3.1 None other than set out above.

1.4 Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.4.1 None arising from this report.

1.5 Risk Assessment

1.5.1 None arising from this report.

1.6 Equality Impact Assessment

1.6.1 Please see ‘Screening for Equality Impacts’ table below.
1.7 Recommendations

1.7.1 Members are asked to RECOMMEND to Council that the revised arrangements
set out at Annex 1 to this report are adopted.

Screening for equality impacts:

Question Answer | Explanation of impacts

a. Does the decision being made or No
recommended through this paper
have potential to cause adverse
impact or discriminate against
different groups in the community?

b. Does the decision being made or N/A
recommended through this paper
make a positive contribution to
promoting equality?

c. What steps are you taking to
mitigate, reduce, avoid or minimise
the impacts identified above?

Background papers: contact: Adrian Stanfield

None

Adrian Stanfield

Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public 11 February 2014
Page 6



ANNEX 1

ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT

1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

COMPLAINTS UNDER THE LOCALISM ACT 2011

Context

These Arrangements are made under section 28 of the Localism Act 2011.
They set out the process that the Borough Council has adopted for dealing with
complaints that an elected or co-opted member or parish councillor has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct.

Interpretation
‘Borough Councif’ means the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council.

‘Code of Conduct’ means the Code of Conduct, which the Borough has adopted
under section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 at Annex 1 to these
Arrangements.

‘Complainant’ means a person who has submitted a complaint in accordance
with these Arrangements alleging that a Subject Member has breached the
Code of Conduct.

‘Disclosable Pecuniary Interest’ means those disclosable pecuniary interests
that meet the definition prescribed by regulations (as amended from time to
time) as set out in Annex 2 to the Code of Conduct.

‘Hearing Panel’ means the panel appointed by the Borough Council to
determine the outcome of any complaint alieging a breach of the Code of
Conduct by a Subject Member in accordance with these Arrangements.

‘Independent Person’ means a person or persons appointed by the Borough
Council under section 28(7) of the Localism Act 2011:

(a) whose views must be sought and taken into account by the Borough
Council before a decision is made on any complaint alleging a breach of
the Code of Conduct by a Subject Member;

{b) who may be consulted by the Subject Member about the complaint.

‘Investigating Officer’ means the person appointed by the Monitoring Officer to
undertake a formal investigation of a complaint alleging a breach of the Code of
Conduct by a Subject Member. The Investigating Officer may be another senior
officer of the Borough Council, an officer of another authority or an external
investigator.

‘Monitoring Officer’ is a senior officer of the Borough Council who has statutory
responsibility for maintaining the Register of Members’' Interests and who is
responsible for administering the arrangements for dealing with any complaint
alleging a breach of the Code of Conduct by a Subject Member. it includes any
other officer of the Borough Council nominated by the Monitoring Officer to act
on their behalf.

‘Parish Council’ means the relevant parish/town council within the Borough of
Tonbridge and Malling

Page 7 1




ANNEX 1

2.10 ‘Parties’ means the Complainant, Subject Member and the Investigating Officer,
as appropriate.

211 ‘Subject Member means an elected member or co-opted member of the
Borough or Parish Council against whom a complaint has been made alleging a
breach the Code of Conduct.

3. Appointment of Independent Person

3.1 The Council shall appoint the Independent Person (and any substitute) in
accordance with the requirements of section 27 of the Localism Act 2011 upon
such terms as to remuneration and expenses as may be determined by the
Borough Counci! from time to time.

3.2  The Independent Person {and any substitute) shall be treated as if they were a
member of the Borough Council for the purposes of the Borough Council's
arrangements for indemnifying and insuring its Members.

4. Making a complaint

41 A complaint alleging a breach of the Code of Conduct by a Subject Member
must be made in writing and addressed to the Monitoring Officer using the
Complaint Form at Annex 2 to these Arrangements. Complainants who find
difficulty in making their complaint in writing (e.g. because of a disability), will be
offered assistance.

4.2 The Subject Member will normally be informed of the identity of the
Complainant and details of the complaint made against them, but the
Complainant’s identity and/or details of their complaint may be withheld at the
Complainant’s request if it appears to the Monitoring Officer that there are
sound reasons for granting such a request (refer to paragraph 5 of Annex 2 to
these Arrangements).

4.3 The Monitoring Officer will normally acknowledge receipt of a complaint within 5
working days of receiving it. At the same time (and subject to para. 4.2 above),
the Monitoring Officer will send a copy of the complaint to the Subject Member
in accordance with paragraph 2 of Annex 2 to these Arrangements.

5. Criminal conduct

51 In accordance with section 34 of the Localism Act 2011, it is a criminal offence
if, without reasonable excuse, you:

(a) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest within
28 days beginning with the day you become, or are re-elected or re-
appointed, a Member or Co-opted Member of the Authority;

(b) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest within
28 days beginning with the day you hecome aware of it, where you are
acting alone in the course of discharging a function of the Authority
(including making a decision in relation to the matter) and the interest is not
already registered or is not the subject of a pending notification to the
Monitoring Officer;

(c) fail to disclose a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest at a meeting, where such
interest has not already been registered or notified to the Monitoring Officer;

Page 8 2




ANNEX 1

(d) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest within
28 days beginning with the day you disclose it at a meeting, where such
interest has not already been registered or notified to the Monitoring Officer;

{e) take part in discussions or votes at meetings that relate to the Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest, unless a dispensation has been granted;

(f) knowingly or recklessly provide false or misieading information in any of the
above disclosures or notifications.

5.2 Where a complaint against a Subject Member relates to conduct of a criminal
nature referred to above, the Monitoring Officer will deal with the complaint in
accordance with paragraph 4(4) of Annex 2 to these Arrangements.

6. Anonymous complaints

6.1 Complainants must provide their full name and address. An anonymous
complaint will only be accepted by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the
Independent Person, providing it is accompanied by corroborating evidence that
indicates to the Monitoring Officer that it is in the public interest to accept the
complaint.

7. Role of iIndependent Person

7.1 The Independent Person must be consulted and have their views taken into
account before the Authority makes a finding as to whether a Member has
failed to comply with the Code or decides on action to be taken in respect of
that Member. At any other stage of the complaints process under these
Arrangements, the Independent Person may be consulted by the Monitoring
Officer and/or the Subject Member.

8. Preliminary tests

8.1 The Monitoring Officer will, in consultation with the Independent Person,
Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee, put the
complaint through a number of preliminary tests, in accordance with paragraph
1 of Annex 2 to these Arrangements.

8.2 In the event that the Independent Person is unavailable or unable to act, the
time limits specified in paragraph 1 of Annex 2 to these Arrangements may
either be extended by the Monitoring Officer or the Monitoring Officer may act
by consulting only with Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards
Committee in taking the decision or action.

9, Informal resolution

9.1 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee, may consider that the
complaint can be resolved informally at any stage in accordance with paragraph
6 of Annex 2 to these Arrangements.

10.  Investigation

10.1  If the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee, decides that the
complaint merits formal investigation, they will, within 10 working days of
receiving it, appoint an Investigating Officer to undertake the investigation, and
inform the Parties of the appointment.

Page 9 3




ANNEX 1

10.2 The Investigating Officer will investigate the complaint in accordance with
Annex 3 to these Arrangements.

11. Hearing

11.1  If the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee, considers that informal
resolution is not appropriate or is unlikely to be achieved, then they will convene
a meeting of the Hearing Panel to determine the outcome of the complaint in
accordance with Annex 4 to these Arrangements.

12. Sanctions

12.1  Where a Subject Member has been found by the Hearing Panel to have
breached the Code of Conduct, the Hearing Panel may apply any one or more
sanctions in accordance with paragraph 4 of Annex 4 to these Arrangements.

13. Appeal

13.1 There is no right of appeal for the Complainant or the Subject Member against
decisions of either the Monitoring Officer or the Hearing Panel.

14, Revision of these Arrangements

14.1  The Borough Council may by resolution agree to amend these Arrangements
and has delegated to the Monitoring Officer and the Hearing Panel the right to
depart from these Arrangements, where considered expedient to do so in order
to secure the effective and fair consideration of any matter.

Page 10 4



ANNEX 1

Kent Code of Conduct for Members

Preamble

(A) The Code of Conduct that follows is adopted under section 27(2) of the Localism
Act 2011.

(B) The Code is based on the Seven Principles of Public Life under section 28(1) of
the Localism Act 2011, which are set out in Annex 1.

(C) This Preamble and Annex 1 do not form part of the Code, but you should have
regard to them as they will help you to comply with the Code.

(D) If you need guidance on any matter under the Code, you should seek it from the
Monitoring Officer or your own legal adviser — but it is entirely your responsibility to
comply with the provisions of this Code.

(E) In accordance with section 34 of the Localism Act 2011, it is a criminal offence if,
without reascnable excuse, you:

(a) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary interest before the
end of 28 days of becoming, or being re-elected or re-appointed, a Member or
Co-opted Member of the Authority;

(b) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest before the
end of 28 days of you becoming aware of it, where you are acting alone in the
course of discharging a function of the Authority (including making a decision in
relation to the matter) and the interest is not already registered or is not the
subject of a pending notification to the Monitoring Officer;

(¢) fail to disclose a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest at a meeting, where such
interest has not already been registered or notified to the Monitoring Officer;

(d) fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest hefore the
end of 28 days of disclosing it at a meeting, where such interest has not already
been registered or notified to the Monitoring Officer; '

(e) take part in discussions or votes at meetings that relate to the Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest, unless a dispensation has been granted

(f) knowingly or recklessly provide false or misleading information in any of the
above disclosures or notifications.

(F) Any written allegation received by the Authority that you have failed to comply with
the Code will be dealt with under the arrangements adopted by the Authority for
such purposes. If it is found that you have failed to comply with the Code, the
Authority may have regard to this failure in deciding whether to take action and, if
s0, what action to take in relation to you.

Page 11

Revised Julv 2013 1




ANNEX 1

THE CODE
1. Interpretation

In this Code:
«pssoclated Person” means (either in the singular or in the plural):

(a) a family member or any other person with whom you have a close association,
including your spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a
husband or wife, or as if you are civil partners; or

(b) any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in
which they are a partner, or any company of which they are directors; or

(¢) any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class
of securities exceeding the nominal value of £25,000; or

(d) any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and
to which you are appointed or hominated by the Authority; or

() any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or
management:

(i) exercising functions of a public nature; or

(i) directed to charitable purposes; or

(iiiyone of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union).

“Authority” means Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

“Authority Function” means any one or more of the following interests that relate to
the functions of the Authority:

(a) housing - where you are a tenant of the Authority provided that those functions
do not relate particularly to your tenancy or lease; or

{b) school meals or schoo! transport and travelling expenses - where you are a
parent or guardian of a child in full time education, or are a parent governor of a
school, unless it relates particularly to the school which your child attends;

(c) statutory sick pay under Part XI of the Social Security Contributions and
Benefits Act 1992 - where you are in receipt of, or are entitled to the receipt of,
stich pay;

(d) an allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Authority;

(e) any ceremonial honour given to members of the Authority;

(f) setting council tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992.

“Code” means this Code of Conduct.

“Co-opted Member” means a person who is not an elected member of the Authority
but who is a member of:

(a) any committee or sub-committee of the Authority, or
(b) and represents the Authority on, any joint committee or joint sub-committee of
the Authority; and

(c) who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any Meeting.
spisclosable Pecuniary Interest” means those interests of a description specified in

regulations made by the Secretary of State (as amended from time to time) as set out
in Annex 2 and where either it is:

(a) your interest or Page 12

Revised July 2013 2




ANNEX 1

(b) an interest of your spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living as
husband and wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you were civil
partners and provided you are aware that the other person has the interest.

“Interests” means Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other Significant Interests.
"Meeting™ means any meeting of;

(a) the Authority;
(b) the executive of the Authority;
(c) any of the Authority's or its executive's committees, sub-committees, joint

committees and/or joint sub-committees.

"Member" means a person who is an elected member of the Authority and includes a
Co-opted Member.

“Other Significant Interest” means an interest (other than a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest or an interest in an Authority Function) which:

(a) affects the financial position of yourself and/or an Associated Person; or

(b) relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an
Associated Person;

and which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts
would reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your
judgment of the public interest.

“Register of NMembers’ Interests” means the Authority's register of Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests established and maintained by the Monitoring Officer under section
29 of the Localism Act 2011.

"Sensitive Interest” means information, the details of which, if disclosed, could lead to
you or & person connected with you being subject to viclence or intimidation.

Scope

2. You must comply with this Code whenever you act in your capacity as a Member or
Co-opted Member of the Authority.

General obligations

3. (1)You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the
Authority:

(a) act in accordance with the Authority’s reasonable requirements; and
(b) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes
{including party political purposes).

(2) You must not:

(a) bully any person;

(b} intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is or is likely to be a
complainant, a witness, or involved in the administration of any investigation
or proceedings, in relation to an allegation that a Member (including yourself)
has failed to comply with this Code;

Page 13

Revised July 2013 3




ANNEX 1

(¢) do anything that compromises, or is likely to compromise, the impartiality or
integrity of those who work for, or on behalf of, the Authority;

(d) disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone, or information
acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably fo be aware, is of a
confidential nature, except where:

(i) you have the written consent of a person authortsed to give it; or

(i) you are requlred by law to do so; or

(i) the disclosure is made to a thlrd party for the purpose of obtaining
professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose the
information to any other person; or

(iv) the disclosure is:

» reasonable and in the public interest; and
« made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements

of the Authority;

(e) prevent another person from gaining access to information to which that
person is entitled by law;

() conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as bringing
your office or the Authority into disrepute;

(g) use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer on or
secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage.

Registering Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

4. (1) You must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day you become a
Member or Co-opted Member of the Authority, or before the end of 28 days
beginning with the day on which this Code takes effect (whichever is the later),
notify the Monitoring Officer of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.

(2) In addition, you must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day you
become aware of any new Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or change to any
interest already registered, register details of that new interest or change, by
providing written notification to the Monitering Officer.

(3) Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be dealt with,
or being dealt with, by you acting alone in the course of discharging a function of
the Authority (including making a decision in relation to the matter), then if the
interest is not registered in the Register of Members’ Interests and is not the
subject of a pending notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer before the
end of 28 days beginning with the day you become aware of the existence of the
interest.

Declaring Interests

5. (1) Whether or not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest has been entered onto the
Register of Members' Interests or is the subject of a pending notification, you
must comply with the disclosure procedures set out below.

(2) Where you are present at a Meeting and have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest
or Other Significant Interest (and you are aware that you have such an interest)
in any matter to be considered, or being considered, at the Meeting, you must:

(a) disclose the Interest; and
(b) explain the nature of that Interest at the commencement of that consideration

or when the Interest becomes nt,(subject to paragraph 6, below); and
unless you have been granted P) 0@% iab

Revised July 2013 4



ANNEX 1

(c) not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter at the
Meeting; and

(d) withdraw from the Meeting room in accordance with the Authority’s Procedure
Rules whenever it becomes apparent that the business is being considered,;
and

(e) not seek improperly to influence a decision about that business.

(3) Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Significant Interest in
any business of the Authority where you are acting alone in the course of
discharging a function of the Authority (including making an executive decision),
you must:

(a) notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and its nature as soon as it
becomes apparent; and

(b) not take any steps, or any further steps, in relation to the matter except for the
purpose of enabling the matter to be deait with otherwise than by you; and

(c) not seek improperly to influence a decision about the matter.

(4) Where you have an Other Significant Interest in any business of the Authority,
you may attend a Mesting but only for the purpose of making representations,
answering questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that
the public are also allowed to attend the Meeting for the same purpose. Having
made your representations, given evidence or answered guestions you must:

(a) not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter at the
Meeting; and

(b) withdraw from the Meeting room in accordance with the Authority's Procedure
Rules.

Sensitive Interests

6. (1) Where you consider that the information relating to any of your Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests is a Sensitive [nterest, and the Monitoring Officer agrees, the
Monitoring Officer will not include details of the Sensitive Interest on any copies
of the Register of Members' Interests which are made available for inspection or
any published version of the Register, but may include a statement that you have
an interest, the details of which are withheld under this paragraph.

(2) You must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day you become aware
of any change of circumstances which means that information excluded under
paragraph 6(1) is no longer a Sensitive Interest, notify the Monitoring Officer
asking that the information be included in the Register of Members' Interests.

(3) The rules relating to disclosure of Interests in paragraphs 5(2) and (3) will apply,
save that you will not be required to disclose the nature of the Sensitive Interest,
but merely the fact that you hold an interest in the matter under discussion.

Gifts and Hospitality

7.(1) You must, before the end of 28 days beginning with the day of
receipt/acceptance, notify the Monitoring Officer of any gift, benefit or hospitality
with an estimated value of £100 or more, or a series of gifts, benefits and
hospitality from the same or an associated source, with an estimated cumulative
value of £100 or more, which are received and accepted by you (in any one
calendar year) in the conduct of the business of the Authority, the business of the
office to which you have been elected or appointed or when you are acting as
representative of the Authority. _You mq'séalso register the source of the gift,
penefit or hospitality. Page

Revised July 2013 5




ANNEX 1

(2)Where any gift, benefit or hospitality you have received or accepted relates to
any matter to be considered, or being considered at a Meeting, you must
disclose at the commencement of the Meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or hospitality, the person or
body who gave it to you and how the business under consideration relates to that
person or body. You may participate in the discussion of the matter and in any
vote taken on the matter, uniess you have an Other Significant Interest, in which
case the procedure in paragraph 5 above will apply.

(3)You must continue to disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality at a relevant Meeting, for 3 years from the date you first registered the
gift, benefit or hospitality.

(4) The duty to notify the Monitoring Officer does not apply where the gift, benefit or
hospitality comes within any description approved by the Authority for this
purpose.

Dispensations

8.(1) The General Purposes Committee or the Monitoring Officer (where authorised)
may, on a written request made to the Monitoring Officer (as appointed Proper
Officer for the receipt of applications for dispensation) by a Member with an
Interest, grant a dispensation relieving the Member from either or both of the
restrictions on participating in discussions and in voting (referred to in
paragraph 5 above).

(2) A dispensation may be granted only if, after having had regard to all relevant
circumstances, the General Purposes Committee or the Monitoring Officer
(where authorised) considers that:

(a) without the dispensation the number of persons prohibited from
participating in any particular business would be so great a proportion of
the body transacting the business as to impede the transaction of the
business; or

(b) without the dispensation, the representation of different political groups
on the body transacting any particular business would be so upset as to
alter the likely outcome of any vote relating to the business; or

(c) granting the dispensation is in the interests of persons living in the
Authority's area; or

(d) without the dispensation each member of the Authority's executive would
be prohibited from participating in any particular business to be
transacted by the Authority's executive; or

(e) itis otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

(3) A dispensation must specify the period for which it has effect, and the period
specified may not exceed four years.

(4) Paragraph 5 above does not apply in relation to anything done for the purpose
of deciding whether to grant a dispensation under this paragraph 8.

Page 16

Revised July 2013 6



ANNEX 1

ANNEX 1

THE SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE

In accordance with the Localism Act 2011, and in order o help maintain public
confidence in this Authority, you are committed to behaving in a manner that is
consistent with the following principles. However, it should be noted that these
Principles do not create statutory obligations for Members and do not form part of the
Code. It follows from this that the Authority cannot accept allegations that they have
been breached.

SELFLESSNESS: You should act solely in terms of the public interest and never
improperly confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial
or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate.

INTEGRITY: You should exercise independent judgment and not compromise your
position by placing yourself under obligations to outside individuals or organisations
who might seek to influence you in the performance of your official duties. You should
behave in accordance with all legal obligations, alongside any requirements contained
within this Authority’s policies, protocols and procedures, including on the use of the
Authority’s resources. You should value your colleagues and staff and engage with
them in an appropriate manner and one that underpins the mutual respect that is
essential to good local government. You should treat people with respect, including the
organisations and public you engage with and those you work alongside.

OBJECTIVITY: In carrying out public business, including making public appointments,
awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards and benefits, you should
make choices on merit. You should deal with representations or enquiries from
residents, members of the communities and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially.
You should champion the needs of the whole community and especially your
constituents, including those who did not vote for you.

ACCOUNTABILITY: You are accountable to the public for your decisions and actions
and should fully co-operate with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

OPENNESS: You should be as open and as transparent as possible about all the
decisions and actions that you take to enable residents to understand the reasoning
behind those decisions and to be informed when holding you and other Members to
account. You should give reasons for your decisions and restrict information only when
the wider public interest or the law clearly demands it. You should listen to the interests
of all parties, including relevant advice from statutory and other professional officers,
taking all relevant information into consideration, remaining objective and making

decisions on merit.

HONESTY: You have a duty to declare interests relating to your public duties and to
take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest. You
should not allow other pressures, including the financial interests of yourself or others
connected to you, to deter you from pursuing constituents’ casework, the interests of
the Authority's area or the good governance of the Authority in a proper manner.

LEADERSHIP: Through leadership and example you should promote and support high
standards of conduct when serving in your public post. You should provide [eadership
through behaving in accordance with these principles when championing the interests
of the community with other organisations as well as within this Authority.

Page 17

Ravisad .lulv 2013 7




ANNEX 1

ANNEX 2

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, as prescribed by regulations, are as follows:

The descriptions on Disclosable Pecuniary Interests are subject to the following
definitions:

“the Act” means the Localism Act 2011

“phody in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in
which the relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which the relevant person
is a director, or in the securities of which the relevant person has a beneficial interest

“director” includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and
provident society

“land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does
not carry with it a right for the relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to occupy
the land or to receive income

“M” means a member of the relevant authority
“member” includes a co-opted member
“relgvant authority” means the authority of which M is a member

“relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with the day on which M
gives a notification for the purposes of section 30(1), or section 31(7), as the case may
be, of the Act

“relevant person” means M or any other person referred to in section 30(3)(b) of the
Act (the Member's spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom they are living as a
husband or wife, or as if they were civil partners).

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a
building society

Interest Description

Employment, office, | Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on

trade, profession or | for profit or gain.

vacation

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other
than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by M in
carrying out duties as a member, or towards the election
expenses of M.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consalidation) Act 1992,

Contracts Any contract whicraig) @ali® between the relevant person (or a

Revised July 2013 3



ANNEX 1

body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest) and
the relevant authority:

(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works
are to be executed; and

(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the
relevant authority.
Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the

area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies | Any tenancy where (to M’s knowledge):
(a) the landlord is the relevant authority; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which the relevant person has a
beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where:

(a) that body (to M's knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the relevant authority; and

(b) either

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or
one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or

(iy if the share capital of that body is of more than one class,
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in which
the relevant person has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 19

Revised July 2013 9




ANNEX 1

Page 20




1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

ANNEX 1

ANNEX 2

PROCEDURE ON RECEIPT OF A COMPLAINT

Preliminary tests

The complaint will be assessed by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the
Independent Person and Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Standards and
Training Committee against the legal jurisdiction test in paragraph 1.2 and, if
applicable, the local assessment criteria test in paragraph 1.4 below.

Legal jurisdiction criteria test:

(a)Did the alleged conduct occur before the adoption of the Code of Conduct?

(bYWas the person complained of a member of the Borough or Parish Council
at the time of the alleged conduct?

(c)Was the person complained of acting in an official capacity at the time of the
alleged conduct?

(d)Did the alleged conduct occur when the person complained of was acting as
a member of another authority?

(e)If the facts could be established as a matter of evidence, could the alleged
conduct be capable of a breach of the Code of Conduct?

(f) The complaint is about dissatisfaction with the Borough or Parish Council’'s
decisions, policies and priorities, etc.

If the complaint fails one or more of the jurisdiction tests, no further action will be
taken by the Monitoring Officer and the complaint will be rejected. The
Complainant will be notified accordingly with reasons, within 10 working days of
receipt of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer. There is no right of appeal
against the Monitoring Officer’s decision.

Local assessment criteria test:

If the complaint satisfies the jurisdiction test, the Monitoring Officer will then apply
the following local assessment criteria test:

(a)The complaint is a ‘repeat complaint’, unless supported by new or further
evidence substantiating or indicating that the complaint is exceptionally
serious or significant;

(b)The complaint is anonymous, unless supported by independent documentary
evidence substantiating or indicating that the complaint is exceptionally
serious or significant;

(c)No or insufficient information/evidence to substantiate the complaint has
been submitted by the Complainant;

(d) The complaint is malicious, trivial, politically motivated or ‘tit-for-tat’;

(e)The Complainant is unreasonably persistent, malicious and/or vexatious;

(f) The alleged misconduct happened more than 3 months ago;

(9)The complaint is relatively minor and dealing with the complaint would have
a disproportionate effect on both public money and officers’ and Members’
time;

(h) The circumstances have changed so much that there would be little benefit
arising from an investigation or other action;

(i) The complaint has been the subject of an investigation or other action and
there is nothing more to be gained by further action being taken;

Page 21




1.5

2.1

2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

ANNEX 1

(). The complaint is such that it is unlikely that an investigation will be able to
come to a firm conclusion on the matter, e.g. where there is no firm evidence
on the matter;

(k) The complaint is about a deceased person;

(h The complaint is about a person who is no longer a Borough or Parish
Councillor or Co-opted Member.

If one or more of the local assessment criteria applies to the complaint, no further
action will be taken by the Monitoring Officer and the complaint will be rejected.
The Complainant will be notified accordingly with reasons within 10 working days of
receipt of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer. There is no right of appeal
against the Monitoring Officer’'s decision.

Notification of complaint to Subject Member

Subject to any representations from the Complainant on confidentiality (see
paragraph 5 betow), the Monitoring Officer will notify the Subject Member [and, if
applicable, the Parish Clerk].

The Monitoring Officer may invite the Subject Member [and, if applicable, the Parish
Clerk] to submit initial views on the complaint within 10 working days, which will be
taken into account by the Monitoring Officer when they decide how to deal with the
complaint (see paragraph 4 below). Views received from the Subject Member
[and/or Parish Clerk] after the 10 working day time limit may be taken into account
at the discretion of the Monitoring Officer, providing the views are received before
the Monitoring Officer issues their written decision on how the complaint will be
dealt with.

Asking for additional information

The Monitoring Officer may ask the Complainant and the Subject Member [and, if
applicable, the Parish Clerk] for additional information before deciding how to deal
with the complaint.

What process to apply - informal resolution or investigation andfor no
action?

The Monitoring Officer may at any stage (whether without the need for an
investigation or before or after the commencement or conclusion of an
investigation) seek to resolve the complaint informally in accordance with
paragraph 6 below. Where the Subject Member or the Monitoring Officer or the
Borough/ Parish Council make a reascnable offer of informal reseclution, but the
Complainant is not willing to accept this offer, the Monitoring Officer will take
account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation.

The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person and Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee may refer the complaint for
investigation when:

(a) it is serious enough, if proven, to justify the range of sanctions available to the
Joint Standards Committee (see paragraph 4 of Annex 4 to these
Arrangements);

(b) the Subject Member’s behaviour is part of a continuing pattern of less serious
misconduct that is unreasonably disrupting the business of the Borough or
Parish Council and there is no other avenue left to deal with it short of

Page 22




ANNEX 1

investigation and, in considering this, the Monitoring Officer may take into
account the time that has passed since the alleged conduct occurred.

4.3 Where the complaint is referred for investigation, the Monitoring Officer will appoint
an Investigating Officer who will conduct the investigation in accordance with the
procedure at Annex 3 to these Arrangements.

4.4 If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulations by the
Subject Member or any other person, the Complainant will be advised by the
Monitoring Officer to report the complaint to the police or other prosecuting or
regulatory authority. In such cases, the complaints process under these
Arrangements will be suspended, pending a decision/action by the police or other
prosecuting or regulatory authority. Where the police or other prosecuting or
regulatory authority decide to take no action on the complaint, the Monitoring
Officer will lift the suspension and in consultation with the Independent Person will
apply the local assessment criteria test in paragraph 1.4 above.

4.5 The Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person and Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Standards and Training Committee, will take no action
on the complaint when one or more of the following apply:

(a) on-going criminal proceedings or a police investigation into the Subject
Member's conduct or where the complaint is suspended in accordance with
paragraph 4.4 above;

(b) investigation cannot be proceeded with, without investigating similar alleged
conduct or needing to come to conclusions of fact about events which are also
the subject of some other investigation or court proceedings;

(c) the investigation might prejudice another investigation or court proceedings;

(d) on-going investigation by another prosecuting or regulatory authority;

(e) genuine long term (3 months or more) unavailability of a key party;

(f} serious iliness of a key party.

4.6 Within 20 working days of receipt of the complaint, the Monitoring Officer will notify
the Complainant, Subject Member [and, if applicable, the Parish Clerk] of their
decision and reasons for applying one of the following processes in the format of
the Decision Notice template (appended to this Annex 2):

{(a) not to refer the complaint for investigation; or

(b) to refer the complaint for investigation; or

(c) to apply the informal resolution process either before or after an investigation;
or

(d) following investigation, to refer the complaint to the [Hearing Panel]; or
(e) to take no action and close the matter; or

(f) to refer the complaint to the relevant political group leader for action.

Page 23




ANNEX 1

4.7 The decision notice will be published on the Borough Council's website. There is
no right of appeal against the Monitoring Officer's decision. However, in the event
that the Complainant submits additional relevant information, the Monitoring Officer
will consider and decide if the matter warrants further consideration under these
Arrangements, in which case it shall be treated as a fresh complaint.

5. Confidentiality

5.1 If the Complainant has asked for their identity to be withheld, this request will be
considered by the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Independent Person
when they initially assess the complaint {(see paragraph 1 above).

5.2 As a matter of fairness and natural justice, the Subject Member will usually be told
who the Complainant is and will also receive details of the complaint. However, in
exceptional circumstances, it may be appropriate to keep the Complainant’s identity
confidential or not disclose details of the complaint to the Subject Member during
the early stages of an investigation. The Monitoring Officer may withhold the
Complainant’s identity if they are satisfied that the Complainant has reasonable
grounds for believing that they or any other person (e.g. a withess):

(a) is either vulnerable or at risk of threat, harm or reprisal;
(b) may suffer intimidation or be victimised or harassed;

(c) works closely with the Subject Member and are afraid of the consequences,
e.g. fear of losing their job;

(d) suffers from a serious health condition and there are medical risks associated
with their identity being disclosed (medical evidence will need to be provided to
substantiate this);

(e} may receive less favourable treatment because of the seniority of the person
they are complaining about in terms of any existing Borough or Parish Council
service provision or any tender/contract they may have with or are about to
submit to the Borough or Parish Council.

OR where early disclosure of the complaint:

(a) may lead to evidence being compromised or destroyed; br

(b) may impede or prejudice the investigation; or

{c) would not be in the public interest.

5.3 Relevant public interest factors favouring disclosure (not an exhaustive list) include:

(a) to facilitate transparency and ethical governance accountability: recognising
that decision-making may be improved by constructive contributions from

others;

(b) to raise public awareness: disclosing the complaint or part of it may inform the
community about matters of general concern;

Page 24



ANNEX 1

(c) justice to an individual: the balance of the public interest may favour disclosure
of the complaint to the Subject Member when it may not be in the public interest
to disclose it to the world at large;

(d) bringing out in the open serious concerns about the behaviour/conduct of an
individual.

5.4 The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person and Chairman
and Vice-Chairmen of the Standards and Training Committee, will balance whether
the public interest in accepting the complaint outweighs the Complainant’s wish to
have their identity (or that of another person} withheld from the Subject Member. If
the Monitoring Officer decides to refuse the Complainant’s request for confidentiality,
they will offer the Complainant the option to withdraw their complaint. The
Complainant will be notified of the Monitoring Officer's decision, with reasons, within
15 working days of receipt of the complaint by the Monitoring Officer. There is no
right of appeal against the Monitoring Officer’'s decision to refuse the Complainant’s
request for confidentiality.

6. Informal resolution

6.1 The Monitoring Officer may after consultation with the Independent Person and
Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee seek to resolve a
complaint informally at any stage in the process, whether without the need for an
investigation or before or after an investigation has been commenced or concluded.
The Monitoring Officer will consult with the Complainant and the Subject Member to
agree what they consider to be a fair resolution which will help to ensure higher
standards of conduct for the future.

6.2 Informal resolution may be the simplest and most cost effective way of resolving the
complaint and may be appropriate where:

(a) The Subject Member appears to have a poor understanding of the Code of
Conduct and/or related Borough/ Parish Council procedures; or

(b) There appears to be a breakdown in the relationship between the Complainant
and the Subject Member; or

(c) The conduct complained of appears to be a symptom of wider underlying
conflicts which, if unresolved, are likely to lead to lead to further misconduct or
allegations of misconduct; or

(d) The conduct complained of appears common to a number of members of the
Borough or Parish Council, demonstrating a lack of awareness, experience or
recognition of the particular provisions of the Code of Conduct and/or other
Borough/ Parish Council procedures, etc; or

(e) The conduct complained of appears to the Monitoring Officer not to require a
formal censure; or

(f) The complaint appears to reveal a lack of guidance, protocols and procedures
within the Borough/ Parish Council; or

{g) The Complainant and the Subject Member are amenable to engaging in an
informal resolution; or

(h) The complaint consists of allegations and retaliatory allegations between
councillors; or

(i) The complaint consists of allegations about how formal meetings are conducted;
or

(i) The conduct complained of may be due to misleading, unclear or misunderstood
advice from officers.

Page 25




ANNEX 1

6.3 Informal resolution may consist of one or more of the following actions, which do not
have to be limited to the Subject Member, but may extend to other councillors
including the whole Borough/ Parish Council where it may be useful to address
systemic behaviour:

(a) training;

(b) conciliation/mediation;

(c) mentoring;

(d) apology;

(e} instituting changes to the Borough or Parish Council’'s procedures;

(f) conflict management;

(g) development of the Borough or Parish Council's protocols;

(h) other remedial action by the Borough or Parish Council;

(i) other steps (other than investigation) if it appears appropriate to the Monitoring
Officer in consultation with the Independent Person.

6.4 If the Subject Member is agreeable to and complies with the informal resolution
process, the Monitoring Officer will report the matter to the Joint Standards
Committee [and, if applicable, the Parish Council] for information, but will take no
further action.

6.5 Where the Subject Member will not participate in the informal resolution process or if,
having agreed to one or more actions under the informal resolution process, the
Subject Member refuses or fails to carry out any agreed action, the Monitoring Officer
will report the matter to the Joint Standards Committee.

Page 26




ANNEX 1

EXAMPLE TEMPLATE — COMPLAINT FORM

Page 27




ANNEX 1

EXAMPLE TEMPLATE - DECISION NOTICE (of the Monitoring Officer): e.g.
REFERRAL FOR INVESTIGATION

Parties should take care when passing on information that is in the notice or about the
notice. For example, some defails such as names and addresses may be confidential
or private in nature, or may be personal information.

Complaint No:

Complaint

On [insert date], the Monitoring Officer considered a complaint from [insert hame of
complainant] concerning the alleged conduct of [insert name of councillor], a member
of [insert authority name]. A general summary of the complaint is set out below.
Complaint summary

[Summarise complaint in numbered paragraphs]

Consultation with Independent Person

[Summarise the Independent Person’s views in numbered paragraphs]

Consultation with the Chairman & Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards
Committee

[Summarise their views in numbered paragraphs]

Decision

Having consulted and taken into account the views of the Independent Person and
Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of the Standards and Training Committee, the Monitoring
Officer decided to refer the complaint for investigation.

Potential breaches of the Code of Conduct identified

At this stage, the Monitoring Officer is not required to decide if the Code of Conduct
has been breached. They are only considering if there is enough information which
shows a potential breach of the Code of Conduct that warrants referral for
investigation.

The Monitoring Officer considers that the alleged conduct, if proven, may amount to a
breach of the following paragraphs of the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring Officer has
appointed [insert name] as the Investigating Officer.

Please note that it will be for the Investigating Officer to determine which paragraphs
are relevant, during the course of the investigation.

[detail relevant Code of Conduct paragraphs}]
Notification of decision
This decision notice is sent to the:

¢ Complainant

Page 28



ANNEX 1

Member against whom the complaint was made
[Clerk to the relevant Parish or Town Council]
Kent County Council's Monitoring Officer (applicable only where the Subject
Member is serving at both [Borough] [City] [District] and County level)
What happens now

The complaint will now be investigated under the Borough Council’s Arrangements for
Dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints under the Localism Act 2011.

Appeal
There is no right of appeal against the Monitoring Officer’s decision.
Additional Help

If you need additional support in relation to this decision notice or future contact with
the Borough Council, please let us know as soon as possible. If you have difficulty
reading this notice, we can make reasonable adjustments to assist you, in line with the
requirements of the Equality Act 2010. We can also help if English is not your first
language. Please refer to the attached Community Interpreting Service leaflet or
contact our Customer Services on linsert telephone number] or email [insert email
address]. We welcome calls via Typetalk

Signed: Date

Print name:

Monitoring Officer of the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
Gibson Building

Gibson Drive

Kings Hill

West Malling

Kent ME19 4LZ

Page 29




ANNEX 1

Page 30



ANNEX 1

ANNEX 3

PROCEDURE FOR INVESTIGATING THE COMPLAINT

1. Preliminaries

1.1 The Investigating Officer will be appointed by the Monitoring Officer and will be
aware of their obligations under the Data Protection Act 1998, Equalities Act 2010,
the Human Rights Act 1998 and other relevant legislation.

1.2 The Investigating Officer is responsible for gathering all the facts, documents and,
where applicable, for interviewing witnesses with knowledge of the facts, and they
should remain objective, impartial and unbiased at all times.

1.3 The Subject Member and the Complainant will be advised that the investigation is
for fact finding purposes only.

1.4 Witnesses will be identified at the investigation stage and their evidence supported
by signed and dated witness statements and/or notes of interview with the
Investigating Officer. The [nvestigating Officer cannot compel the attendance of
witnhesses or their co-operation.

1.6 The Investigating Officer will not make recommendations on sanctions.

1.6 Within 10 working days of being appointed, the Investigating Officer will notify the
Subject Member and the Complainant of their appointment and:

(a) provide details of the complaint to the Subject Member,;

(b) detail the procedure to be followed in respect of the investigation and the
relevant timescales for responses and concluding the investigation;

{c) detail the sections of the Code of Conduct that appear to be relevant to the
complaint;

{d) request contact details of any potential witnesses;

(e) require that confidentiality is maintained and that details of the complaint not be
disclosed to any third party, unless disclosure is to a representative, witness,
immediate family members or otherwise as may be required by law or
regulation. However, the fact that an investigation is being conducted does not
need to remain confidential.

1.7 It may be necessary for the [nvestigating Officer to agree with the Subject Member
which documents will be submitted in evidence. This will generally include
documents that will be relied on, or in support of, the Subject Member's case and
which are relevant to the complaint.

1.8 The I[nvestigating Officer may terminate their investigation at any point, where they
are satisfied that they have sufficient information to enable them to report to the
[Monitoring Officer] [Hearing Panel].

2. The draft report

2.1 On the conclusion of their investigation the Investigating Officer will issue a draft
report (clearly [abelled 'DRAFT’) to the Monitoring Officer for review.

2.2 Following review by the Monitoring Officer, the draft report will be sent in
confidence to the Subject Member and the Complainant (not witnesses) for
comment. The draft report will be clearly labelled ‘CONFIDENTIAL" and will detail;

(a) the relevant provisions of the law and the relevant paragraphs of the
Code of Conduct;

Page 31




ANNEX 1

(b) a summary of the complaint;

(c) the Subject Member’s response to the complaint;

(d) relevant information, expianations, etc, which the Investigation Officer
has obtained in the course of the investigation;

(e) a list of any documents relevant to the matter;

H a list of those persons/organisations who have been interviewed;
(9) a statement of the Investigating Officer's draft findings of fact and
reasons;

(h) the Investigating Officer's conclusion as to whether the Subject Member
has or has not failed to comply with the Authority’s Code of Conduct;

(i) that the Investigating Officer will present a final report once they have
considered any comments received on the draft.

2.3 Once the Investigating Officer has received any responses from the Subject
Member and/or the Complainant, they will finalise the draft report and make their
final conclusions and recommendations to the Monitoring Officer. The report will be
clearly labelled ‘FINAL'.

3. Consideration of Investigating Officer’s final report

3.1 The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s final report and any
comments submitted by the Parties, in consultation with the Independent Person
and Chairmen and Vice-Chairmen of the Joint Standards Committee.

3.2 Where, on the basis of the Investigating Officer’s report, the Monitoring Officer,
having consulted with the Independent Person, Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of
the Joint Standards Committee, concludes that there is no evidence of a failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct; they will inform the Parties in writing that no
further action is considered necessary. There is no right of appeal against the
Monitoring Officer’s decision.

3.3 Where, on the basis of the investigating Officer's report, the Monitoring Officer,
having consulted with the Independent Person, Chairman and Vice-Chairmen of
the Joint Standards Committee concludes that there is evidence of a failure to
comply with the Code of Conduct, they will either:

(a) take no action or

(b) seek informal resolution or

(c) refer the matter for consideration by the Hearing Panel in accordance
with the relevant procedure detailed in Annex 2 to these Arrangements.

Page 32




ANNEX 1

ANNEX 4

HEARING PANEL PROCEDURE

1. Rules of procedure
1.1 The Hearing Panel shall be comprised as follows —

(a) Where the Subject Member is a Borough Councillor, the Panel shall be
comprised of five Borough Members and one Parish/ Town Member drawn from
the Joint Standards Commiittee, one of whom shall be elected as Chairman.

(b) Where the Subject Member is a Town or Parish Councillor, the Panel
shall be comprised of three Borough Members and three Parish/ Town
Members drawn from the Joint Standards Committee, one of whom shall be
elected as Chairman.

Where practicable, members of the Hearing Panel shall be drawn from a
different planning area of the Borough than the member against whom the
complaint has been made.

1.2 The quorum for a meeting of the Hearing Panel is three.

1.3  The Independent Person's views must be sought and taken into consideration
before the Hearing Panel takes any decision on whether the Subject Member's
conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any
sanction to he taken following a finding of failure to comply with the Code of
Conduct. The Independent Person should normally be present throughout the
hearing (but not during the deliberations of the Hearing Panel in private) but in
the event that this is not possible, may submit their views on the complaint to
the Hearing Panel in writing instead.

1.4  The legal requirements for publishing agendas, minutes and calling meetings,
will apply to the Hearing Panel. The hearing will be held in public no earlier
than 14 working days after the Monitoring Officer has copied the Investigating
Officer’s final report to the complainant and the Subject Member, Schedule 12A
Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) will be applied where it is necessary
to exclude the public and press from meetings of the Hearing Panel where it is
likely that confidential or exempt information will be disclosed.

1.5 All matters/issues hefore the Hearing Panel will be decided by a simple majority
of votes cast, with the Chairman having a second or casting vote.

1.6 Where the Subject Member fails to attend the Hearing Panel and where the
Hearing Panel is not satisfied with their explanation for their absence from the
hearing, the Hearing Panel may in the first instance, have regard to any written
representations submitted by the Subject Member and may resolve to proceed
with the hearing in the Subject Member's absence and make a determination
or, if satisfied with the Subject Member ’s reasons for not attending the hearing,
adjourn the hearing to another date. The Hearing Panel may resolve in
exceptional circumstances, that it will proceed with the hearing on the basis that
it is in the public interest to hear the allegations expeditiously.

! Janik v Standards Board for England & Adjudication Panel for England (2007}

Page 33




3.1

3.2

3.3

34

3.5

3.6

ANNEX 1

Right to he accompanied by a representative

The Subject Member may choose to be accompanied and/or represented at the
Hearing Panel by a fellow councillor, friend or colleague.

The conduct of the hearing
Subject to paragraph 3.2 below, the order of business will be as follows:

(a)elect a Chairman;

{b)apologies for absence;

(c)declarations of interests;

(d)in the absence of the Subject Member, consideration as to whether to
adjourn or to proceed with the hearing (refer to paragraph 1.11 above);

(e}introduction by the Chairman, of members of the Hearing Panel, the
Independent Person, Monitoring Officer, Investigating Officer, legal advisor,
complainant and the Subject Member and their representative;

(f) to receive representations from the Monitoring Officer andfor Subject
Member as to whether any part of the hearing should be held in private
and/or whether any documents (or parts thereof) should be withheld from the
public/press,;

(g)to determine whether the public/press are to be excluded from any part of
the meeting and/or whether any documents (or parts thereof) should be
withheld from the public/press.

The Chairman may exercise their discretion and amend the order of business,
where they consider that it is expedient to do so in order to secure the effective
and fair consideration of any matter.

The Hearing Panel may adjourn the hearing at any time.
Presentation of the complaint

(a)The Investigating Officer presents their report including any documentary
evidence or other material and calls his/her witnesses. No new points will be
permitted;

(bYThe Subject Member or their representative may question the Investigating
Officer and any witnesses called by the Investigating Officer,;

(c) The Hearing Panel may question the Investigating Officer upon the content
of his/her report and any witnesses called by the Investigating Officer.

Presentation of the Subject Member's case

(a)The Subject Member or their representative presents their case and calls
their witnesses;

(b)The Investigating Officer may question the Subject Member and any
witnesses called by the Subject Member;

(c) The Hearing Panel may question the Subject Member and any witnesses
called by the Subject Member.

Summing up

{(a) The Investigating Officer sums up the complaint;
{(b) The Subject Member or their representative sums up their case.

Page 34




ANNEX 1

3.7 Views/Submissions of the Independent Person

The Chairman will invite the Independent Person to express their view on
whether they consider that on the facts presented to the Hearing Panel, there
has been a breach of the Cade of Conduct or no breach as the case may be.

3.8 Deliberations of the Hearing Panel
Deliberation in private

(&) The Hearing Panel will adjourn the hearing and deliberate in private
(assisted on matters of law by a legal advisor) to consider whether, on the
facts found, the Subject Member has failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct.

{(b) The Hearing Panel may at any time come out of private session and
reconvene the hearing in public, in order to seek additional evidence from
the Investigating Officer, the Subject Member or the witnesses. |f further
information to assist the Panel cannot be presented, then the Panel may
adjourn the hearing and issue directions as to the additional evidence
required and from whom.

Announcing decision on facts found

3.9(a) The Hearing Panel will reconvene the hearing in public and the Chairman
will announce that on the facts found, the Panel considers that there has
been a breach of the Code of Conduct, or no breach, as the case may be.

(b) Where the Hearing Panel finds that there has been a breach of the Code of
Conduct, the Chairman will invite the Independent Person, the Subject
Member and the Monitoring Officer to make their representations as to
whether any sanctions (in accordance with paragraph 4 of this Annex 4)
should be applied and what form they should take.

(c) Having heard the representations of the Independent Person, the Subject
Member and the Monitoring Officer on the application of sanctions, the
Hearing Panel will adjourn and deliberate in private.

(d) If evidence presented to the Hearing Panel highlights other potential
breaches of the Borough or Parish Council's Code of Conduct, then the
Chairman will outline the Hearing Panel's concerns and recommend that the
matter be referred to the Monitoring Officer as a new complaint.

Formal Announcement of Decision
3.10 (a) Where the complaint has a number of aspects, the Hearing Panel may
reach a finding, apply a sanction and/or make a recommendation on each

aspect separately.

{b) The Hearing Panel will make its decision on the balance of probability,
based on the evidence before it during the hearing.

(c) Having taken into account the representations of the Independent Person,
the Subject Member and the Monitoring Officer on the application of

Page 35




ANNEX 1

sanctions, the Hearing Panel wiil reconvene the hearing in public and the
Chairman will announce:

(i) the Panel's decision as to whether or not the Subject Member has failed
to comply with the Code of Conduct, and the principal reasons for the
decision;

(i) the sanctions (if any) to be applied;

(iii) the recommendations (if any) to be made to the Borough or Parish
Council or Monitoring Officer;

(iv) that there is no right of appeal against the Panel's decision and/or
recommendations.

Range of possible sanctions

4.1 Subject to paragraph 4.4 below, where the Hearing Panel determines that the
Subject Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, any one or
more of the following sanctions may be applied/ recommended;

(a)Recommending to the Borough/ Parish Council that the Subject Member be
issued with a formal censure (i.e. the issue of an unfavourable opinion or
judgement or reprimand) by motion;

(b)Recommending to the Subject Member's Group Leader or Parish Council, or
in the case of a ungrouped Subject Member, to the Borough/ Parish Council
that they be removed from committees or sub-committees of the Council;

{c)Recommending to the Leader of the Borough Council that the Subject
Member be removed from the Cabinet or removed from particular Portfolio
responsibilities;

(d)Instructing the Monitoring Officer [or recommendation fo the Parish Council]
to arrange training for the Subject Member;

(e)Recommending to the Borough/ Parish Council that the Subject Member be
removed from all outside appointments to which they have been appointed
or nominated by the Borough/ Parish Council;

{fy Recommending to the Borough/ Parish Council that it withdraws facilities
provided to the Subject Member by the Council, such as a computer,
website and/or email and internet access;

(g)Recommending to the Borough/ Parish Council the exclusion of the Subject
Member from the Borough/ Parish Council's offices or other premises, with
the exception of meeting rooms as necessary for attending Borough/ Parish
Coungcil committee and sub- committee meetings;

(h)Reporting the Panel's findings to the Borough/ Parish Council for
information:;

(i} Instructing the Monitaring Officer to apply the informal resclution process;

() Sending a formal letter to the Subject Member;

(k) Recommending to the Borough/ Parish Council to issue a press release or
other form of publicity;

(I} Publishing its findings in respect of the Subject Member’s conduct in such
manner as the Panel considers appropriate.

4.2 The Hearing Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the Subject Member or
to withdraw basic or special responsibility allowances.

4.3 The Hearing Panel may specify that any sanction take effect immediately or take
effect at a later date and that the sanction be time limited.

4.4 When deciding whether to apply one or more sanctions referred to in paragraph
4.1 above, the Hearing Panel will ensure that the application of any sanction is

Page 36




ANNEX 1

reasonable and proportionate to the Subject Member’s behaviour. The Hearing
Panel will consider the following questions along with any other relevant
circumstances or other factors specific to the local environment:

(a)What was the Subject Member's intention and did they know that they were
failing to follow the Borough/ Parish Council’'s Code of Conduct?

{b)Did the Subject Member receive advice from officers before the incident and
was that advice acted on in good faith?

(c)Has there been a breach of trust?

(dyHas there been financial impropriety, e.g. improper expense claims or
procedural irregularities?

(e)What was the result/impact of failing to follow the Borough/ Parish Council's
Code of Conduct?

(f) How serious was the incident?

{g)Does the Subject Member accept that they were at fault?

{(h)Did the Subject Member apologise to the relevant persons?

(i) Has the Subject Member previously been reprimanded or warned for similar
misconduct?

(j) Has the Subject Member previously breached of the Borough or Parish
Council’s Code of Conduct?

(k) Is there likely to be a repetition of the incident?

5. Publication and notification of the [Hearing Panel's] decision and
recommendations

5.1 Within 10 working days of the Hearing Panei's announcement of its decision and
recommendations, the Monitoring Officer will publish the name of the Subject
Member and a summary of the Hearing Panel's decision and recommendations
and reasons for the decision and recommendations on the Borough Council's
website. '

5.2 Within 10 working days of the announcement of the Hearing Panel’s decision, the
Monitoring Officer will provide a full written decision and the reasons for the
decision, including any recommendations, in the format of the Decision Notice
template below to:

(a)the Subject Member;

(b}the Complainant;

(c}the Clerk to the Parish Council;

(d)Kent County Council's Standards Committee (applicable only where the
subject Member is serving at both Borough and County level);

5.3 The Monitoring Officer will report the Hearing Panel's decision and

recommendations to the next ordinary meeting of the Joint Standards Committee
for information.

Page 37



ANNEX 1

TEMPLATE - DECISION NOTICE (of Hearing Panel)

Complaint No: xxxx

On [insert date], the Hearing Panel of the Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council
considered a report of an investigation into the alleged conduct of Councillor [insert
name of councillor], a member of [insert authority name]. A general summary of the
complaint is set out below.

Complaint summary

[Summarise complaint in numbered paragraphs as set out in the Investigating Officer’'s
report to the Hearing Panel]

Consultation with Independent Person
[Summarise the Independent Person’s views in numbered paragraphs]
Findings

After considering the submissions of the parties to the hearing and the views of the
Independent Person, the Hearing Panel reached the following decision(s):

[Summarise the finding of facts and the Hearing Panel’s decision against each finding
of fact in numbered paragraphs as set out in the Investigating Officer's report to the
Hearing Panel, but substitute the Investigating Officer for the Hearing Panel. Please
note that the Hearing Panel’s findings may differ from that of the Investigating Officer]
The Hearing Panel also made the following recommendation(s)

[Detail recommendations]

Sanctions applied

The breach of the [insert authority name] Code of Conduct warrants a [detail sanctions
applied].

Appeal

There is no right of appeal against the Hearing Panel's decision.
Notification of decision

This decision notice is sent to the:

Councillor [name of councillor]

Complainant

[Clerk to the xxxx Parish/Town Council];

Kent County Council’'s Monitoring Officer fapplicable only where the Counciilor
is serving at both {Borough] [City] [District] and County level]

Additional help

Page 38




ANNEX 1

If you need additional support in relation teo this decision notice or future contact with
the Borough Council, please let us know as soon as possible. If you have difficulty
reading this notice, we can make reasonable adjustments to assist you, in line with the
requirements of the Equality Act 2010. We can also help if English is not your first
language. Please refer to the attached Community Interpreting Service leaflet or
contact our Customer Services on [insert telephone number] or email [insert email
address]. We welcome calls via Typetalk

Signed: Date

Print name:

Chairman of the Hearing Panel

Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council

Page 39




ANNEX 1

Page 40




Agenda ltem 4

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11 FEBRUARY 2014

Report of the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer
Part 1- Public
For Information

1 OPENNESS AND TRANSPARENCY ON PERSONAL INTERESTS — A GUIDE
FOR COUNCILLORS

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1 This report advises the Committee of recent guidance issued by the Department
for Communities and Local Government.

1.1.2 The guidance and covering letter is attached to this report as Annex 1.
1.2 Key points

1.2.1 The guidance draws attention to the seven statutory principles of public life, and in
particular to the principle of integrity. The guidance is intended to give practical
information about how members are to be open and transparent about their
personal interests.

Trade Union membership

1.2.2 One particular area of the guidance relates to trade union membership. It states
‘All sitting councillors need to declare their declarable interests — both declarable
pecuniary interests, and other interests that must be declared and registered by
your authority’s code, or your duty to act in conformity with the Seven Principles of
Public Life, such as your membership of any Trade Union’.

1.2.3 There is no specific requirement in the regulations made under the Localism Act
to disclose membership of a trade union as a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. The
regulations require that members disclose any sponsorship i.e. any payment or
provision of any other financial benefit, in respect of any expenses incurred by a
member in carrying out duties as a member, or towards their election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union. The interest that
must be declared is the receipt of a payment or financial benefit, rather than the
membership of a trade union.

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public g€ 41 11 February 2014



1.2.4 The Kent Code adopted by Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council and a number
of parishes, makes further provision in relation to trade unions, in that members
holding a position of general control or management in a political party or trade
union may potentially have an ‘Other Significant Interest’ in any business of the
Authority affecting that political party or trade union. Ordinary members will not
therefore be subject to these provisions.

1.2.5 Appendix B of the NALC code includes similar provisions relating to parish
members, although this code goes slightly further in extending the interest to
ordinary members of political parties/ trade unions as well as those in positions of
general control or management.

1.2.6 The guidance issued by the Secretary of State does not have any statutory force,
as the Localism Act does not empower him to issue statutory guidance.
Nevertheless, the guidance has now raised as an issue the question of whether
members should now declare membership of a trade union in order to comply with
the general principle of integrity. For those authorities who have adopted the Kent
Code, the simplest solution may be to amend the definition of ‘Associated Person’
so as include membership of a trade union as well as positions of general control
or management. That would be a decision for each authority.

Interests of spouse/ partner

1.2.7 The guidance clarifies the position relating to the spouses/ partners of members,
in that it makes it clear there is no requirement for members to identify separately
their interests when completing the notification of disclosable pecuniary interests.
This is consistent with the practice adopted by Tonbridge and Malling for some
time now.

Setting Council tax or precepts

1.2.8 The guidance also contains a useful section on the involvement of Councillors in
setting council tax or precepts. Under the previous statutory regime there was a
specific statutory dispensation for members to participate in such matters,
notwithstanding their position as council tax payers, which was not carried forward
into the new regime. This led to some uncertainty as to whether a dispensation
would be required for all members to participate in budget debates and decisions
on council tax.

1.2.9 The advice contained within the new guidance is that no dispensation is required
— any payment or, or liability to pay, council tax does not give rise to a disclosable
pecuniary interest as defined in the new statutory scheme. The rationale for this
view is that any decision on council tax does not materially affect members’ land-
holding interests. The introduction of the ‘materially affect’ test is not something
that is contained within the Localism Act 2011 or any regulations made under it,
so it does therefore remain to be seen whether the Courts take a similar approach
in deciding whether such an interest arises. Nevertheless, the advice confirms the

2

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Publilsage 4 11 February 2014

2



1.3

1.3.1

1.3.2

1.3.3

1.4

1.4.1

1.5

1.5.1

1.6

1.6.1

1.7

1.7.1

position we have taken to date on interests arising in connection with budget
debates.

Legal Implications

In accordance with Section 27 of the Localism Act 2011, a relevant authority
(which includes Tonbridge and Malling Borough Council and all parish councils
within the borough) must promote and maintain high standards of conduct by
members and co-opted members. In discharging this duty the authority must
adopt a code dealing with the conduct that is expected of members/ co-opted
members when they are acting in that capacity.

The code adopted by each relevant authority must, when viewed as a whole, be
consistent with the following principles — selflessness, integrity, objectivity,
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership. The code must also include
provision for the registration and disclosure of pecuniary and non-pecuniary
interests.

The Localism Act does not empower the Secretary of State to issue statutory
guidance. The advice contained within Annex 1 does not therefore have the force
of law.

Financial and Value for Money Considerations

None arising from this report.

Risk Assessment

None arising from this report.

Equality Impact Assessment

Please see ‘Screening for Equality Impacts’ table below.
Recommendations

Members are asked to note this report.

Screening for equality impacts:

Question Answer | Explanation of impacts

a. Does the decision being made or No
recommended through this paper
have potential to cause adverse
impact or discriminate against
different groups in the community?

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public 11 February 2014

Page 43




Screening for equality impacts:

Question

Answer

Explanation of impacts

b. Does the decision being made or
recommended through this paper
make a positive contribution to
promoting equality?

N/A

c. What steps are you taking to
mitigate, reduce, avoid or minimise
the impacts identified above?

Background papers:

None

Adrian Stanfield

Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

4

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 PUb"ISage 44

contact: Adrian Stanfield

11 February 2014




. ANNEX 1

Department for o

Communities and
Local Government

Chief Executives

Principal Local Authorities in England :

Greater London Authority 20 September 2013
Fire and Rescue Authorities in England '

The London Fire and Emergency Plannmg Authonly

The Broads Authority ' -

National Park Authorities in England :

Counclil of the Isles of Scilly

Dear Chief Executwe

OPENNESS AND TRANSPARENCY ON PERSONAL INTERESTS:
A GUIDE FOR COUNCILLORS

| enclose a copy of the revised plain English guide for councillors on openness and
transparency on personal interests, and a copy of a revised illustrative text for a code of
conduct for members and.co-opted members of local authorities, both of which the
Department has today published on its website.

The guide gives straightforward information about how councillors should be open and
transparent about their personal interests. It has been revised with new guidance making
it clear that councillors should treat Trade Union membership as a personal, non-
pecuniary interest. The illustrative code has been revised to reflect the same guidance.

Where a councillor is sponsored by a Trade Union, this constitutes a disclosable

pecuniary interest and as such must be registered and declared. The guide now makes it .
clear that membership of a Trade Union constitutes a personal interest which should be
registered and declared. The Government believes that this new guidance will give local
people the confidence that their councillors are putting residents; interests before their

own and before those of any particular group. | should be grateful if you would please

draw the guide and this correspondence to the attention of your monitoring officer.

Yours sincerely
' -__-____;.-—-—-l L] ’ ’ .
Paul Rowsell

Paul Rowsell .

Dapuly Director - Democracy
Depariment for Gommunilies and Local Government

3/J1, Eland House -
Bressanden Place

Lendon SWHE 5DU Tel 0303 44 44166

Email paul. row:seil@commumhes gsi.gov.uk’

Page 45




ANNEX 1

Page 46




ANNEX 1

lllustrative text for code dealing with the conduct expected of members and
co-opted members of the authority when acting in that capacity

You are a member or co-opted member of the [name] council and hence you shall
have regard to the following principles — selflessness, integrity, objectivity,
accountability, openness, honesty and leadership.

Accordingly, when acting in your capacity as a member or co-opted member -

You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly confer an
advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain financial or other material
benefits for yourself, your family, a friend or close associate.

You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside
individuals or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of
your official duties.

When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such as making
public appeintments, awarding contracts or recommending individuals for rewards or
benefits, on merit.

You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must co-operate fully
with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.

You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and the
decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to give reasons for
those decisions and actions.

You must declare any private interests, both pecuniary and non-pecuniary, including
your membership of any Trade Union, that relate to your public duties and must take
steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that protects the public interest,
including registering and declaring interests in a manner conforming with the
procedures set out in the box below.

You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resources of your
authority, ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political purposes
(including party political purposes} and you must have regard to any applicable Local
Authority Code of Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.

You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving in your

public post, in particular as characterised by the above requirements, by leadership
and example.

Page 47




ANNEX 1

Registering and declaring pecuniary and non-pecuniary interests

You must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted member, notify
your authority’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary interest as defined by
regulations made by the Secretary of State, where the pecuniary interest is yours,
your spouse’s or civil partner's, or is the pecuniary interest of somebody with whom
you are living with as a husband or wife, or as if you were civil partners.

In addition, you must, within 28 days of taking office as a member or co-opted
member, notify your authority’s monitoring officer of any disclosable pecuniary or
non-pecuniary interest which your authority has decided should be included in the
register or which you consider should be included if you are to fulfil your duty to act
in conformity with the Seven Principles of Public Life. These non-pecuniary interests
will necessarily include your membership of any Trade Union.

If an interest has not been entered onto the authority's register, then the member
must disclose the interest to any meeting of the authority at which they are present,
where they have a disclosable interest in any matter being considered and where the
matter is not a ‘sensitive interest".!

Following any disclosure of an interest not on the authority's register or the subject of
pending notification, you must notify the monitoring officer of the interest within 28
days beginning with the date of disclosure.

Unless dispensation has been granted, you may not participate in any discussion of,
vote on, or discharge any function related to any matter in which you have a
pecuniary interest as defined by regulations made by the Secretary of State.
Additionally, your must observe the restrictions your authority places on your
involvement in matters where you have a pecuniary or non pecuniary interest as
defined by your authority.

' A ‘sensitive interest' is described in the Localism Act 2011 as a member or co-opted member of an
authority having an interest, and the nature of the interest being such that the member or co-opted
member, and the authority’s monitoring officer, consider that disclosure of the details of the interest
could lead to the member or co-opted member, or a person connected with the member or co-opted
member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

Page 48




ANNEX 1

&
Department for

Communities and
Local Government

Openness and transparency on personal
interests

A guide for councillors

September 2013
Department for Communities and Local Government

Page 49




ANNEX 1

© Crown copyright, 2013

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown.

You may re-use this information (not inciuding logos) free of charge in any format or medium, under the
terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-
government-licence/ or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU,
or email: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

This document/publication is also available on our website at www.gov. uk/delg

If you have any enquiries regarding this document/publication, email contactus@communities.gov.uk or write
to us at: '

Department for Communities and Local Government
Eland House

Bressenden Place

London

SW1E 5DU

Telephone: 030 3444 0000

For all our latest news and updates follow us on Twitter; https:/ftwitter.com/CommunitiesUK

September 2013
1SBN: 978-1-4098--3604-9

Page 50



ANNEX 1

The Guide

This guide on personal interests gives basic practical information about how to be open
and transparent about your personal interests. It is designed to help councillors, including
parish councillors, now that new standards arrangements have been introduced by the
Localism Act 2011,

Why are there new rules?

Parliament has abolished the Standards Board regime and all the rules under it. It has
done this because that centrally-imposed, bureaucratic regime had become a vehicle for
petty, malicious and politically-motivated complaints against councillors. Rather than
creating a culture of trust and openness between councillors and those they represent, it
was damaging, without justification, the public’s confidence in local democratic
governance.

The new standards arrangements that Parliament has put in place mean that it is largely
for councils themselves to decide their own local rules. It is essential that there is
confidence that councillors everywhere are putting the public interest first and are not
benefiting their own financial affairs from being a councillor. Accordingly, within the new
standards arrangements there are national rules about councillors’ interests.?

Such rules, in one form or another, have existed for decades. The new rules are similar to
the rules that were in place prior to the Standards Board regime. Those rules, originating
in the Local Government Act 1972 and the Local Government and Housing Act 1989,
involved local authority members registering their pecuniary interests in a publicly available
register, and disclosing their interests and withdrawing from meetings in certain
circumstances. Failure to comply with those rules was in certain circumstances a criminal
offence, as is failure to comply in certain circumstances with the new rules.

Does this affect me?
Yes, if you are an elected, co-opted, or appointed member of:

a district, unitary, metropolitan, county or London borough council
a parish or town council

a fire and rescue authority

a transport or other joint authority

a combined authority or an economic prosperity board

the London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority

the Broads Authority

! The Guide should not be taken as providing any definitive interpretation of the statutory requirements;
those wishing to address such issues should seek their own legal advice,

% The national rules are in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011 and in the secondary legislation made under
the Act, particularly in The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 (S.1.
2012/1464).

Page 51




ANNEX 1

a National Park authority

the Greater London Authority

the Common Council of the City of London
the Council of the Isles of Scilly

How will there be openness and transparency about my
personal interests?

The national rules require your council or authority to adopt a code of conduct for its
members and to have a register of members’ interests.

The national rules require your council's code of conduct to comply with the Seven
Principles of Public Life, and to set out how, in conformity with the rules, you will have to
disclose and register your pecuniary and your other interests. Within these rules it is for
your council to decide what its code of conduct says. An illustrative text for such a code is
available on the Department’s web site.®

Your council’s or authority’s monitoring officer (or in the case of a parish council the
monitoring officer of the district or borough council) must establish and maintain your
council’s register of members’ interests. Within the requirements of the national rules it is
for your council or authority to determine what is to be entered in its register of members’
interests.

What personal interests should be entered in my council’s or
authority’s register of members’ interests?

Disclosable pecuniary interests, and any other of your personal interests which your
council or authority, in particular through its code of conduct, has determined should be
registered.

Any other of your personal interests which you have asked the monitoring officer, who is
responsible for your council's or authority’s register of members’ interests, to enter in the
register.

As explained in the following section, your registration of personal interests should be
guided by your duty to act in conformity with the seven principles of public life. You should
ensure that you register all personal interests that conformity with the seven principles
requires. These interests will necessarily include your membership of any Trade Union.

What must | do about registering my personal interests?

Under your council's code of conduct you must act in conformity with the Seven Principles
of Public Life. One of these is the principle of integrity — that ‘Holders of public office must
avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not act or {ake decisions in

* hitps:/fwww.gov.uk/governmant/publicationsfillustrative-text-for-local-code-of-conduct--2

Page 52




ANNEX 1

order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their
friends. They must declare and resclve any interests and relationships.’.

Your registration of personal interests should be guided by this duty and you should give
the monitoring officer who is responsible for your council’s or authority’s register of
members’ interests any information he or she requests in order to keep that register up to
date and any other information which you consider should be entered in the register.

All sitting councillors need to register their declarable interests ~ both declarable pecuniary
interests, and other interests that must be declared and registered as required by your
authority’s code, or your duty to act in conformity with the Seven Principles of Public Life,
such as your membership of any Trade Union. Any suggestion that you should tell the
monitoring officer about your pecuniary interests only in the immediate aftermath of your
being elected is wholly incompatible with this duty, with which you must comply.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not recorded in the register and which
relates to any business that is or will be considered at a meeting where you are present,
you must disclose® this to the meeting and tell the monitoring officer about it, if you have
not already done so, so that it can be added to the register. You must tell the monitoring
officer within 28 days of disclosing the interest. For this purpose a meeting includes any
meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any committee of the executive,
and of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of your
authority.

If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not shown in the register and relates
to any business on which you are acting alone, you must, within 28 days of becoming
aware of this, tell the monitoring officer about it, if you have not already done so, so that it
can be added to the register. You must also stop dealing with the matter as soon as you
become aware of having a disclosable pecuniary interest relating to the business.

When you are first elected, co-opted, or appointed a member to your council or authority,
you must, within 28 days of becoming a member, tell the monitoring officer who is
responsible for your council’s or authority’s register of members’ interests about your
disclosable pecuniary interests. If you are re-elected, re-co-opted, or reappointed a
member, you need to tell the monitoring officer about only those disclosable pecuniary
interests that are not already recorded in the register.

What are pecuniary interests?

A person’s pecuniary interests are their business interests (for example their employment,
trade, profession, contracts, or any company with which they are associated) and wider

4 http:/feww . public-standards.gov.uk/about-usfwhat-we-do/the-seven-principles/

® If the interest is a sensitive interest you should disclose merely the fact that you have such a disclosable
pecuniary interest, rather than the interest. A sensitive interest is one which the member and the monitoring
officer, who is responsible for the register of members' interests, consider that disclosure of its details could
lead to the member, or a person connacted to the member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

Page 53




ANNEX 1

financial interests they might have (for example trust funds, investments, and assets
including land and property).

Do | have any disclosable pecuniary interests?

You have a disclosable pecuniary interest if you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a
pecuniary interest listed in the national rules (see annex). Interests or your spouse or civil
partner, following the approach of the rules under the 1972 and 1989 Acts, are included to
ensure that the public can have confidence that councillors are putting the public interest
first and not benefiting the financial affairs of themselves or their spouse or civil partner
from which the councillor would stand to gain. For this purpose your spouse or civil
partner includes any person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or as if they
were your civil partner.

Does my spouse’s or civil partner's name need to appear on
the register of interests?

No. For the purposes of the register, an interest of your spouse or civil partner, which is
listed in the national rules, is your disclosable pecuniary interest. Whilst the detailed
format of the register of members’ interests is for your council to decide, there is no
requirement to differentiate your disclosable pecuniary interests between those which
relate to you personally and those that relate to your spouse or civil partner.

Does my signature need to be published online? Won't this
put me at risk of identity theft?

There is no legal requirement for the personal signatures of councillors to be published
online.

Who can see the register of members’ interests?

Except for parish councils, a council’'s or authority’s register of members’ interests must be
available for inspection in the local area, and must be published on the council's or
authority’s website.

For parish councils, the monitoring officer who is responsible for the council’s register of
members’ interests must arrange for the parish council's register of members’ interests to
be available for inspection in the district of borough, and must be published on the district
or borough council's website.

Where the parish council has its own website, its register of members’ interests must also
be published on that website.

This is in line with the Government's policies of transparency and accountability, ensuring
that the public have ready access to publicly available information.

Page 54



ANNEX 1

[s there any scope for withholding information on the
published register?

Copies of the register of members’ interests which are available for inspection or published
must not include details of a member’s sensitive interest, other than stating that the
member has an interest the details of which are withheld. A sensitive interest is one which
the member and the monitoring officer, who is responsible for the register of members’

interests, consider that disclosure of its details could lead to the member, or a person
connected to the member, being subject to violence or intimidation.

When is information about my interests removed from my
council’s register of members’ interests?

If you cease to have an interest, that interest can be removed from the register. If you
cease to be a member of the authority, all of your interests can be removed from the

register.

What does having a disclosable pecuniary interest stop me
doing?

If you are present at a meeting of your council or authority, of its executive or any
committee of the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint

sub-committee of your authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary interest relating to
any business that is or will be considered at the meeting, you must not:

s participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become aware
of your disclosable pecuniary interest during the meeting participate further in any
discussion of the business, or

o participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a member of
the public.

In certain circumstances you can request a dispensation from these prohibitions.

Where these prohibitions apply, do | also have to leave the
room?

Where your council’s or authority's standing orders require this, you must leave the room.
Even where there are no such standing orders, you must [eave the room if you consider
your continued presence is incompatible with your council’s code of conduct or the Seven
Principles of Public Life.

Do | need a dispensation to take part in the business of
setting council tax or a precept?

Page 55




ANNEX 1

Any payment of, or liability to pay, council tax does not create a disclosable pecuniary
interest as defined in the national rules; hence being a council tax payer does not mean
that you need a dispensation to take part in the business of setting the council tax or
precept or local arrangements for council tax support.

If you are a homeowner or tenant in the area of your council you will have registered, in
accordance with the national rules, that beneficial interest in land. However, this
disclosable pecuniary interest is not a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter of
setting the council tax or precept since decisions on the council tax or precept do not
materially affect your interest in the land. For example, it does not materially affect the
value of your home, your prospects of selling that home, or how you might use or enjoy
that land.

Accordingly, you will not need a dispensation to take part in the business of setting the
council tax or precept or local arrangements for council tax support, which is in any event a
decision affecting the generality of the public in the area of your council, rather than you as
an individual.

When and how can | apply for a dispensation?

The rules allow your council or authority in certain circumstances to grant a dispensation to
permit a member to take part in the business of the authority even if the member has a
disclosable pecuniary interest relating to that business. These circumstances are where
the council or authority considers that:

« without the dispensation so great a proportion of the council or authority would be
prohibited from participating in that business as to impede the council’s or
authority’s transaction of that business,

¢ without the dispensation the representation of different political groups dealing with
that business would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote,

o the granting of the dispensation is in the interests of people living in the council’s or
authority's area,

¢ without the dispensation each member of the council’'s executive would be
prohibited from participating in the business, or

¢ it is otherwise appropriate to grant a dispensation.

If you would like your council or authority to grant you a dispensation, you must make a
written request to the officer responsible for handling such requests in the case of your
council or authority.

What happens if | don’t follow the rules on disclosable
pecuniary interests?

[t is a criminal offence if, without a reasonable excuse, you fail to tell the monitoring officer
about your disclosable pecuniary interests, either for inclusion on the register if you are a
newly elected, co-opted or appointed member, or to update the register if you are re-
elected or re-appointed, or when you become aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest
which is not recorded in the register but which relates to any matter;

Page 56




ANNEX 1

¢ that will be or is being considered at a meeting where you are present, or
¢ on which you are acting alone.

it is also a criminal offence to knowingly or recklessly provide false or misleading
information, or to participate in the business of your authority where that business involves
a disclosable pecuniary interest. 1t is also a criminal offence to continue working on a
matter which can be discharged by a single member and in which you have a disclosable
pecuniary interest.

If you are found guilty of such a criminal offence, you can be fined up to £5,000 and
disqualified from holding office as a councillor for up to five years.

Where can | look at the national rules on pecuniary
interests?

The national rules about pecuniary interests are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act
2011, which is available on the internet here:

hitp://www.leqislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2011/20/part/1/chapter/7/enacted

and in the secondary legislation made under the Act, in particular The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 which can be found here:

http:/fwww . leqislation.gov.uk/uksi/2012/1464/contents/made

Page 57




ANNEX 1

Annex A

Description of Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable pecuniary
interests under the new national rules. Any reference to spouse or civil partner includes
any person with whom you are living as husband or wife, or as if they were your civil
partner.

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain,
which you, or your spouse or civil partner, undertakes.

Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your council
or authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any expenses
incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election
expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade union within
the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.
The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the
monitoring officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests following your election
or re-election, or when you became aware you had a disclosable pecuniary interest
relating to a matter on which you were acting alone.

Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or a
body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest)
and your council or authority —
o under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be
executed; and
o which has not been fully discharged.

Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, have
and which is within the area of your council or authority.

Any licence {(alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month or
longer.

Any tenancy where {to your knowledge) —
o the landlord is your council or authority; and
o the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a
beneficial interest.

Page 58




ANNEX 1

Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in
securities of a body where —
o (a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area
of your council or authority; and
o (b) either —
= the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
= if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total
nominal value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your
spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

Page 59




ANNEX 1

Page 60




Agenda ltem 5

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL
JOINT STANDARDS COMMITTEE
11 FEBRUARY 2014

Report of the Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

Part 1- Public

For Information

1 STANDARDS IN PUBLIC LIFE

1.1 Introduction

1.1.1 The Localism Act 2011 made fundamental changes to the system of regulation of
standards of conduct for elected and co-opted Councillors. The changes to the
local government standards regime brought about by the 2011 Act came into force
on 1 July 2012.

1.1.2 By way of reflection on the operation on the new provisions, this report updates
Members on the reaction to the new standards regime from the Committee on
Standards in Public Life, together with the results of a survey conducted by
Lawyers in Local Government.

1.2 Committee on Standards in Public Life

1.2.1 The role of the Committee on Standards in Public Life is to examine concerns
about the standards of conduct of public office holders and to recommend any
changes that might be required to ensure the highest standards of conduct are
maintained. The Committee was created in 1994 in response to a number of
allegations of ‘sleaze’ or corrupt practices. It exists as an advisory committee to
the Prime Minister on standards issues, and has no sanctions at its disposal.

1.2.2 Inits annual report for 2012/13, the Committee set out its views on the
effectiveness of the new standards regime. An extract of the relevant section of
the report is included at Annex 1. For the benefit of Members the key points of the
report relating to local government standards are set out below -

(@) The Committee welcomed the introduction of a mandatory requirement for
local authorities to adopt a local code of conduct based upon the Seven
Principles of Public Life and the intention to encourage a greater sense of
local responsibility for standards and to reduce the number of vexatious
complaints.

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public a2ge 61 11 February 2014



(b)

(d)

(e)

The Committee expects the new regime to function well in areas where
party leaders are prepared to provide the necessary leadership and
example.

The Committee do not consider that the range of sanctions available under
the new regime is sufficient. It comments that the last few years have seen
a number of examples of inappropriate behaviour which would not pass the
strict tests required to warrant a criminal prosecution, but which deserves a
sanction stronger than simple censure.

The Committee doubts that the new arrangements relating to Independent
Persons will be sufficient to provide assurance that justice is being done
and, equally important, that it is seen to be done.

The Committee also expresses concern over the time given to local
authorities to prepare for the new regime, and the lateness with which
some authorities adopted a new code and appointed an independent
person.

1.2.2 | have also attached at Annex 2 an article written by Lord Bew, Chairman of the
Committee on Standards in Public Life.

1.3 Raising the standards - local government lawyer survey

1.3.1 During the latter part of 2013, the Local Government Lawyer conducted a survey
of its members on the effectiveness of the new regime. The results of this survey
are summarised below.

(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Publilsage 6

85% of respondents believed that the sanctions available under the new
regime were too weak, reflecting the similar concerns expressed by the
Committee on Standards in Public Life. 13% of respondents felt the new
sanctions were ‘about right’, with 2% saying they were ‘too tough’.

Only 6 respondents revealed that they had had to report a failure to
disclose a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) to the Police

50% of respondents concluded that the role of the Independent Person was
working either very well or quite well. Just 7% believed it to be working
either quite badly or very badly. The remainder (43%) said the role had
made no difference.

22% of respondents said the reforms had led to a fall in the number of
vexatious complaints. 15% said the number of such complaints had
increased, whilst 63% said the reforms had made no difference.

25% of respondents reported that councillors’ behaviour had worsened
since the reforms came into effect. 4% said it had led to improved
behaviour, while 71% said it had made no difference.

2

> 11 February 2014



(f) There was division as to the effectiveness of the new provisions on
predetermination and bias. 23% of respondents felt the Act had improved
members’ understanding of the rules, whilst 20% felt it had worsened
councillors’ understanding.

(9) 83% of respondents felt that clarification of the law via the Localism Act had
made little or no difference to the quality of decision making. The remainder
was split equally (9% each) between those who thought it had improved the
robustness of members’ decision making and those who felt it had left
decisions more vulnerable to challenge.

1.4 Legal Implications

1.4.1 None arising from this report.

1.5 Financial and Value for Money Considerations

1.5.1 None arising from this report.
1.6 Risk Assessment
1.6.1 None arising from this report.

1.7 Equality Impact Assessment

1.7.1 Please see ‘Screening for Equality Impacts’ table below.

1.8 Recommendations

1.8.1 Members are asked to note this report.

Screening for equality impacts:

Question

Answer

Explanation of impacts

a. Does the decision being made or
recommended through this paper
have potential to cause adverse
impact or discriminate against
different groups in the community?

No

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 Public

Page 63

11 February 2014




Screening for equality impacts:

Question

Answer

Explanation of impacts

b. Does the decision being made or
recommended through this paper
make a positive contribution to
promoting equality?

N/A

c. What steps are you taking to
mitigate, reduce, avoid or minimise
the impacts identified above?

Background papers:

None

Adrian Stanfield

Director of Central Services & Monitoring Officer

4

Joint Standards Committee - Part 1 PUb"ISage 64

contact: Adrian Stanfield

11 February 2014




ANNEX 1

UNCLASSIFIED

August 2013

UNCLASSIFIED

Page 65




ANNEX 1 ~

Page 66




Lobbying

36,

37.

ANNEX 1

UNCLASSIFIED

The Committee continues to regard lobbying as an area in which there are genuine concerns
involving suspicions that some lobbying may be taking place in secret and some individuals or
organisations have more access to policy makers, so that it is not known who or what is influencing
a particular decision. However, we remain doubtful that a statutory register of third party
lobbyists, as proposed by the Government in a consultation paper in 2012, is the key to further
reform. We believe it would be better to build on the steps already taken to increase
transparency. Greater transparency might include, for example, enhancing the level of disclosure
around meetings between ministers and those lobbying on behalf of a particular interest, as
proposed in a report published in July 2012 by the Political and Constitutional Reform Committee,
The Government renewed its commitment to introducing a statutory register of lobbyists and
increasing transparency around lobbying in its mid-term review of the Coalition published in

January and has recently restated that legislation will be introduced in July 2013,

As set out in our annual work plan, the Committee has been considering the transparency issues
around lobbying, focusing particularly on those who are lobbied. To progress this work, the
Committee issued a call for evidence in June and will be holding a meeting after the Parliamentary
recess with interested parties, to look at what more can be done to bring greater integrity to
existing arrangements. With the evidence gathered we aim to produce proportionate
recommendations which will complement the proposed statutory provision and help restore the

public’s trust and confidence.

Local government standards

38,

39.

Under the Localism Act 2011 the new local government standards regime came into effect on 1
July 2012, The Committee welcomed the introduction of a mandatory requirement for local
authorities to adopt a local code of conduct based on the Seven Principles of Public Life and the
intention to encourage a greater sense of local responsibility for standards and to reduce the

number of vexatious complaints.

While we recognise that the new system needs time to properly bed in, we do, however, have

certain concerns:

» Due to the emphasis on local ownership of standards we would expect the new regime, like the

previous one, to function well in those areas where party leaders are prepared to provide the

UNCLASSIFIED
14
Page 67




ANNEX 1

UNCLASSIFIED

necessary leadership and example. It is likely to do less well where such leadership is
inadequate.” History suggests that problems are most likely in areas with monolithic political
cultures and correspondingly little political challenge, where partisan rivalry is most bitter and
tit-for-tat accusations most common, or in those predominantly rural areas with significant

numbers of independent members without the henefit of party discipline.

¢ Under the previous arrangements local authorities and an independent tribunal had the power
to suspend members for varying periods of time as a sanction against poor behaviour. The
only sanctions now available, apart from through the use of a political party’s internal
discipline procedures are censure or criminal prosecution for deliberately withholding or
misrepresenting a financial interest. We do not think these are sufficient. The last few years
have seen a number of examples of inappropriate behaviour which would not pass the strict
tests required to warrant a criminal prosecution, but which deserves a sanction stronger than
simple censure. While censure may carry opprobrium in the political arena it is often
considered unacceptably lenient by the public relative to other areas of their experience.
Coercion of other members or officers is one category of offence with which it will be difficult

to deal adequately under the new arrangements.

¢ Under the previous arrangements allegations about poor behaviour were determined by
standards committees independently chaired by individuals who were not themselves
members of the local authority. Under the new arrangements every local authority must
appoint at least one independent person whose views it will seek, and take into account,
before making its decision on an allegation that it has decided to investigate. We doubt that
this will be sufficient to provide assurance that justice is being done and, equally important,

that it is seen to be done.

o In the transition to the new system local authorities may have lacked proper time to prepare. In
early June 2012 we wrote to all local authorities in England to ask about their preparations for
implementing the new regime which came into force on 1 luly 2012, The Committee was
concerned that so late in the day, nearly half of those who responded had yet to adopt a new
code and around four fifths had yet to appoint an independent person. The fact that the
Regulations and Order which took effect from 1 July were laid only on 6 June cannot have

helped their preparations.

® Not forgetting that in several prominent recent cases it is the behaviour of leaders themselves that have been
under question,

UNCLASSIFIED

15
Page 68



ANNEX 1

UNCLASSIFIED

40. While inevitably there have been various teething problems with the new regime, the Committee
will continue to monitor the implementation and its effectiveness, particularly in relation to public
confidence that any wrongdoing is tackled promptly and transparently in the absence of any

external investigation and scrutiny.

Independent Adviser on Ministerial Interests

41. In areport published in March 2012, the Public Administration Select Committee (PASC) raised the
possibility that the Independent Adviser on Ministerial Interests was in practice insufficiently
independent, as he or she is appointed personally by the Prime Minister, is supported from within
the Cabinet Office, and cannot instigate his or her own investigations. Investigations can only be
undertaken at the request of the Prime Minister. We agreed, and argued for the independence of

the role to be increased and the power to instigate investigations to be granted.

42. The Independent Adviser on Ministerial Interests has carried out one investigation since then,
finding in June 2012 that the then Conservative Co-Chairman had committed a minor breach of the
Ministerial Code by not declaring a business relationship. However, there has also been
controversy over the Prime Minister’s decisions not to refer allegations made in 2012 about a
possible breach of the code by the then Secretary of State for Culture, Media and Sport in relation
to the bid by News Corporation for BSkyB to the Independent Adviser, on the basis that the issue
would be looked at during evidence sessions for the Leveson Inquiry. It would in our view have
taken much of the politics out of the issue, to everyone’s advantage, if the decision on whether to
investigate separately had been taken by the Independent Adviser — even if, as he might well have
done, he had taken the same view. |t is too easy for a Prime Ministerial decision not to refer, to
be interpreted, however unfairly, as being motivated hy a desire to avoid uncomfortable

revelations.

43. In July 2012 our then Chair, Sir Christopher Kelly, issued a statement arguing for the Adviser to
have the power to instigate investigations. The debate is still ongoing, and we continue to monitor

it with interest,

The Leveson Inquiry

44, Part 1 of the Leveson Inquiry into the culture, practice and ethics of the press was published in
November 2012. The Committee submitted written evidence to the Inquiry in 2011, and welcomed

the contribution it made to the debate on press regulation and public standards in the UK more
UNCLASSIFIED

16
Page 69




ANNEX 1

Page 70



baright.  answers not options

ANNEX 2

ecent research published by the
Committee on Standards in Public

y  Life, which | chair, contained very

: %impressive figures about the level of
publ;c confidence in local front line officials,

Asked about whether or nct they felt they
would be treated fairly by a range of local
services, 70% to 74% thought they weuld be
treated fairly. These [avels of trust would be
the envy of other professicns and politicians
at a national level,

There was also a clear ressage in the
research that the public's perceptions of
standards are not static; they respond to
events and developments in the public
sphere — how they are handled and reported,
There is no reason to believe that people
who are currently sceptical of politics could
not become mere hopeful. This requires
public office holders to be seen to lve up
1o the seven principles: selflessness, integrity,
objectivity, accountability, openness, honesty
and |eadership. .

Prime resporsibility for mantaining
high standards of behaviour must lie with
individuals and organisations, not with

external regulation. That is cne of the reasons .

why the Committee welcomed some
aspects of the new standards regime for local
government which replaced a scheme which
was widely cited as an example of ethical
‘over-engineering’,

A step too far?

The naw arrangements emphasised local
responsibility for standards and reduced

the opportunity for vexatious or politically-
metivated complaints, But we alse expressed
our concern that the new regime was
stripped back too fan

Local Government Lawyer The Localism Act —

Its lack of a range of available sancticns
means that its success is entirely dependent
on robust local leadership and ethical
championing, This is a fragile balance and we
fear that those local authorities that are ‘good
at this stuff” will continue o be, while others
resort to the old tactics.

To function effectively, focal leadership and
responsibility for standards requires cartain
conditions to be met — including strong
leadership and robust, visible action against
those who fall short. The Local Government
Association has a particularly important
responsibility in this respect.

A smattering of recent cases in the
media illustrate these arguments and my
Committee is alert to the fact that it may
have to look at the subject again where
individual cases give rise to wider public
concern,

The Committee is currently monitoring
the impact of new models of service delivery
in the vast range of services now procured

e fear that those local
authorities who are ‘good
at this stuff” will continue fo
be while others resort to the
old tactics

by local governmenit, Local councillors
—through their involvement in Locat
Commissioning Groups — control significant
health and local government expenditure.
New responsibilities for public health give
local government responsibilities to procure
preventative services, Increasingly, public
bodies are urged to pool their rescurces and
to undertake joint activity in order to achieve
value for money for local communities,
Those involved in precurement may
argue that they have very little leeway in the
way they handle the whole procurement
process, due to its often centralised nature
and having to comply with UK and EU
regulations, but my Committee argues
strengly that councils should apply a
rigorous approach to ensuring that high
ethical standards are applied at all stages
of the process, including the continuing
outcomes once contracts are signed, as part
of ensuring transparency and the regularity
and propriety of procurement.

two years on

Page 71

Dpenness and decision-making

In our latest report, Strengthening
Transparency Around Lobbying, published in
November, the Committee called for even
freater openness around decision malkers
across the public secton

We called for more timely and detailed
disclosure about all significant meetings
and hospitality involving external attempts
to influence a public policy decision and
encouraged focal government (and other
public authorities not coverad by the
FOI Act) to live up to this new level of
transparency.

Local government is responsible for
decisions that can be high value and complex,
Decisions relating to the commissioning and
procuring of public services is one example,
but decisions in respect of applications for
permits, planning or licences are others —the
process by which z decision is made matters,
High ethical standards and transparency
are mutually supportive and together can
strengthen public accountability, increase
public engagement and improve public trust,

Society can expect better outcemes
when decisions are made fairly and on merit
and not influenced by persenal and private
interests, High ethical standards need to
be deeply embedded in governance and
processes so that they become an integral
part of ‘the way things are done’ and so that
individual or corporate behaviour which does
not meet these standards is challenged.

Organisations in every sector benefit
from greater legitimacy when the public has
confidence in their integrity, The UK zconomy
benefits naticnally and internztionally from
that confidence. The current high level of
public confidence
in front fine
local officials
should not
be taken for
granted.

Lord {Paul)
Bewis

chair of the
Committee
on Standards
in Public

Life

December 2013




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



	Agenda
	3 Arrangements for Dealing with Code of Conduct Complaints
	Annex 1

	4 Openness and Transparency on Personal Interests - A Guide for Councillors
	Annex 1

	5 Standards in Public Life
	Annex 1
	Annex 2


